CONTRACT

July 1, 2000 - June 30, 2003

between

Red Bank Borough Board of Education

and

Red Bank Borough Educational Association

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	PREAMBLE		
•	Article I	Recognition	1
1	Article II	Negotiation Procedure	3
	Article III	Grievance Procedure	5
4	Article IV	Rights of the Parties	10
	Article V	School Calendar	15
ľ	Article VI	Teaching Hours and Teaching Load	16
ĺ	Article VII	(Reserved)	19
ļ	Article VIII	Non-Teaching Duties	20
	Article IX	Teacher Employment	21
	Article X	Salaries	23
Ī	Article XI	Teacher Assignment	26
İ	Article XII	Teacher Evaluation	28
	Article XIII	Teacher Facilities	31
	Article XIV	Teacher - Administrative Liaison	32
	Article XV	Sick Leave	33
Í	Article XVI	Temporary Leave of Absence	
	Article XVII	Extended Leave of Absence	38
	Article XVIII	Professional Development and	
		Educational Improvement	42
	Article XIX	Protection of Teachers, Students,	
Maria de la compansión		and Property	46
	Article XX	Maintenance of Classroom	
		Control and Discipline	47
	Article XXI	Insurance Protection	48

Article XXII	Deduction from Salary	50
Article XXIII	Miscellaneous Provisions	
Article XXIV	Representation Fee	
Article XXV	Duration of Agreement	
Appendix A -	Grievance Report	
Appendix B -	Mini-Grant Application Format	61
	& Guidelines	1
Appendix C -	Extra Work/Extra Pay Positions	63
Appendix D -	Salary Guides 2000-2001	64
Appendix E -	Salary Guides 2001-2002	65
Appendix F -	Salary Guides 2002-2003	66

. .

PREAMBLE

This Agreement entered into this 12th day of March, 2001 by and between the Board of Education of Red Bank, New Jersey, hereinafter called the "Board", and the Red Bank Borough Education Association, hereinafter called the "Association".

Article I Recognition

A. The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive and sole representative for collective negotiations concerning the terms and conditions of employment for all professionally certificated personnel employed by the Board, including:

All full-time certificated teachers

All part-time certificated teachers

Facilitators of Instructional Computer Programs

Guidance Counselors

Student/Family Counselor

Learning Disability Teacher Consultants

Librarians

Nurses

Psychologists

Part-time Remedial Basic Skills Instructors

Reading Specialists

Speech Therapists

Social Workers

Student Assistance Advisors

Substance Abuse Counselors

Student/Family Counselor(s)

But excluding:

Supervisory and executive personnel, office, clerical, and maintenance and operating employees such as but not limited to: principals, vice-principals, administrative assistants, department chairpersons, coordinators, directors, aides.

B. Unless otherwise indicated, the term "teachers" when used hereinafter in this Agreement, shall refer to all professional employees in the negotiation unit as defined.

Article II Negotiation Procedure

- A. In accordance with Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974, the parties agree to enter into negotiations in a goodfaith effort to reach agreement concerning the terms and conditions of employment.
- B. Representatives of the Board and the Association shall commence negotiations in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Public Employment Relations Commission. During the interim period, between the date of submission of demands and the date commencing of negotiations by the representatives, Association representatives shall meet as requested for the purpose of clarification of financial details, contractual meaning, and matters affecting the educational process with Board representatives, Superintendent, or the business manager, as is necessary.
- C. Facts, opinions, proposals, and counterproposals will be exchanged freely during the meeting or meetings in an effort to reach mutual understanding in agreement. The Board shall make available to the Association of all pertinent records, data, and information of the Red Bank School District which are within public domain.
- D. The Board agrees not to negotiate with any organization other than that designated as the representative pursuant to Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974 for the duration of this Agreement.
- E. This Agreement incorporated the entire understanding of the parties on matters which were or could have been

the subject of negotiation. During the term of this Agreement, neither party shall be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter whether or not covered by this Agreement and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or executed this Agreement.

- F. Except as this Agreement shall hereinafter otherwise provide, all terms and conditions of employment applicable on the effective date of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect except that proposed new rules or modifications of existing rules governing working conditions shall be negotiated with the majority representative before they are established.
- G. The Board shall inform the Association of all funds received from all outside sources to include state and federal governments.

Article III Grievance Procedure

A. Definition

A "grievance" shall mean a complaint by a teacher that he or she has suffered a personal loss, injury, or inconvenience because of the violation, misinterpretation, or inequitable application of Board Policy, this Agreement or an administrative decision affecting teachers. A grievance to be considered under this procedure must be initiated by the teacher within thirty (30) calendar days from the time when the teacher knew or should have known of its occurrence.

B. Procedure

- 1. (a) Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limits shall permit the aggrieved teacher to proceed to the next step. Failure at any step of this procedure to appeal a grievance to the next step within the specified time limits shall be acceptance of the decision rendered at that step.
 - (b) It is understood that teachers shall, during and notwithstanding the pendency of any grievance, continue to observe all assignments and applicable rules and regulations of the Board until such grievance and any effect thereof shall have been fully determined.
- 2. The Association may process a grievance through all levels of the grievance procedure even though the aggrieved person does not wish to do so.
- 3. Any teacher who has a grievance shall discuss

it first with the teacher's principal (or immediate superior or department head, if applicable) in an attempt to resolve the matter informally at, that level.

- 4. If, as a result of the discussion, the matter is not resolved to the satisfaction of the teacher within five (5) school days, the teacher shall set forth the teacher's grievance, on the form provided (see Appendix A), to the principal. The principal shall communicate the principal's decision to the teacher in writing within five (5) school days of the receipt of the written grievance.
- The teacher, no later than five (5) school days after 5. receipt of the principal's decision, may appeal the principal's decision to the Superintendent of Schools. The appeal to the Superintendent must be made in writing reciting the matter submitted to the principal as specified above and the teacher's dissatisfaction with decisions previously rendered. The Superintendent shall attempt to resolve the matter as quickly as possible, but within a period not to exceed ten (10) school days. The Superintendent shall communicate the Superintendent's decision in writing to the teacher and the principal.
- 6. If the grievance is not resolved to the teacher's satisfaction, the teacher, no later than five (5) school days after receipt of the Superintendent's decision, may request a review by the Board of Education. The request shall be submitted in writing through the Superintendent of Schools who shall attach all related papers and forward the request to the Board of Education. The Board, or a committee thereof, shall review the grievance and shall, at the option

of the Board, hold a hearing with the teacher and render a decision in writing within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the grievance by the Board.

- 7. If the decision of the Board does not resolve the grievance to the satisfaction of the Association and the Association wishes review by a third party, they shall so notify the Board through the Superintendent within ten (10) school days of receipt of the Board's decision, except in the case of a grievance involving a complaint of a non-tenured teacher arising from that teacher not being offered re-employment.
- 8. (a) The following procedure will be used to secure the services of an arbitrator:
 - (1) A joint request will be made to the Public Employment Relations Commission to submit a roster of persons qualified to function as an arbitrator in the dispute in question.
 - (2) If the parties are unable to determine a mutually satisfactory arbitrator from the submitted list, they will request the Public Employment Relations Commission to submit a second rostor of recommission to submit a second rostor of recommission.
 - (3) If the parties are unable to determine within ten (10) school days of the initial request for arbitration, a mutually satisfactory arbitrator from the second submitted list, the Public Employment Relations Commission may be requested by either party to designate an arbitrator.

- (b) The arbitrator shall be limited to the issues submitted by the parties and shall consider nothing else. The arbitrator can add nothing to nor subtract anything from the Agreement between the parties or any policy of the Board of Education. The decision of the arbitrator shall be final and binding upon both parties. Only the Board, the Superintendent and the aggrieved representative shall be given copies of the arbitrator's award. This shall be accomplished within thirty (30) calendar days of the completion of the arbitrator's hearings.
- (c) Rights of teachers to representation:
 - (1) Any aggrieved person may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure alone or, at the aggrieved's option, by a representative selected or approved by the Association.
 - by the Association in the processing of a grievance, the Association shall at the time of submission of the grievance to the Superintendent or any later level, be notified that the grievance is in process, have the right to be present and present its position in writing at all hearing sessions held concerning the grievance and shall receive a copy of all decisions rendered. A copy of the principal's written decision made in

response to a written grievance shall be given to the Association immediately.

- (3) The Board and the Association shall assure the individual freedom from restraint, interference, coercion, discrimination, or reprisal in presenting any appeal with respect to personal grievances.
- (d) The parties shall be responsible for all costs incurred by each, and only the fee and expenses, if any, of the arbitrator shall be shared by each party paying one-half.
- 9. In the event a grievance is filed between May 15 and the end of the school year, all reference to school days in the grievance procedure shall read "calendar days".
- 10. All documents, communications, and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed in a separate grievance file and shall not be kept in the personnel file of any of the participants.
- 11. All meetings and hearings under this procedure shall not be conducted in public.

Article IV Rights of the Parties

- A. Pursuant to Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974, public employees included in the negotiating unit have, and shall be protected in the exercise of, the right, freely and without fear of penalty or reprisal, to form, join, and assist any employee organization or refrain from any such activity. As a duly selected body exercising governmental powers under cover of law of the State of New Jersey, the Board undertakes and agrees that it shall not directly or indirectly discourage or deprive or coerce any teacher in the enjoyment of any rights conferred by Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974 or other laws of New Jersey, or the Constitution of New Jersey and the United States.
- B. The Board of Education, subject only to the language of this Agreement, reserves to itself full jurisdiction and authority over matters of policy and retains the right, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations
 - (a) to direct employees of the school district;
 - (b) to hire, promote, transfer, assign, and retain employees in positions within the school district and to suspend, demote, discharge, or take other disciplinary action against employees;
 - (c) to relieve employees from duties because of lack of work, or for other legitimate reasons;
 - (d) to maintain the efficiency of the school district operations entrusted to them;
 - (e) to determine the methods, means, and personnel by which such operations are to be conducted; and

(f) to take whatever actions might be necessary to carry out the mission of the school district in situations of emergency.

Where policies have been or shall be adopted by the Board of Education in any or all of these areas, questions and issues arising thereunder shall be subject to the grievance procedure.

- C. No teacher shall be disciplined or reprimanded without just cause. Any such actions asserted by the Board, or any agent or representative thereof, shall be subject to the grievance procedure herein set forth.
- D. Whenever any teacher is required to appear before the Board or committee or member thereof concerning any matter which could adversely affect the continuation of that teacher, in the teacher's office, position, or employment or the salary or any increments pertaining to, then the teacher shall be given three (3) calendar days prior written notice of the reasons for such meeting or interview and shall be entitled to have a person of the teacher's own choosing to advise and represent the teacher during such meeting or interview.
- E. Representatives of the Association, the Monmouth County Education Association, the New Jersey Education Association, and the National Education Association shall be permitted to transact official Association business on school property at all reasonable times provided that this shall not interfere with or interrupt normal school operations and that the administration has been duly notified, and approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- F. The Board agrees to furnish to the Association the agenda and minutes of all Board meetings, and the

names and addresses of all staff members.

- G. The Association and its representatives shall be permitted to use school buildings at all reasonable hours for meetings, under the following conditions:
 - 1. The Association agrees to abide by the Board policy regarding facility use including the filing of a building usage form for such use. For such purpose the Association shall be exempt from insurance certificate requirements and the payment of fees and treated as a school-related organization.
 - 2. Under no circumstance shall the Board be required to move or cancel another organization's activity or Board-sponsored activity to accommodate the Association's request for use of facilities.
 - 3. The principal of the building in question shall be given reasonable advanced notice, normally at least twenty-four hours, except in the case of an emergency, of the time and place of all such meetings.
 - 4. The approval of the principal or the board secretary shall be secured. Said approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- H. Normally negotiations shall be scheduled after school hours. If negotiations are mutually scheduled by the parties during working hours, the Board will release, with pay, teacher members of the negotiating team of the Association to conduct such negotiations if such teacher members do not exceed four (4).
- I. The Association shall be permitted to use school building facilities and equipment, including computers, copying machines and other duplicating equipment, calculat-

ing machines, and all types of AV equipment when such equipment is not otherwise in use. The Association shall pay for the reasonable cost of all materials and supplies incident to such use.

- J. The Association shall be permitted to purchase expendable office supplies and other materials from the Board's suppliers at the price paid by the Board or from existent stock if such is available. In either event a purchase order is required.
- K. The Association shall have, in each school building, the exclusive use of a bulletin board in each faculty lounge and shall also have the right to place formal notices on the bulletin board in the dining room.
- L. The Association shall be permitted to use the interschool mail facilities and school mailboxes.
- M. The Association President shall be permitted to address all new teachers during the orientation day each year.
- N. The Association shall select, and so notify the Superintendent for inclusion in the Activity Calendar, one day each month on a regularly scheduled basis for the Association meetings after school. No other meetings involving members of the unit shall be scheduled for that day except in an emergency.
- 0. The President of the Association shall not be assigned more than the equivalent of five (5) student instruction-supervision periods per day, or 3 1/2 hours of student instructional time and shall be excused from regular study hall duties, homeroom assignments, and any other extra instruction-supervision assignments on a permanent basis except in an emergency. Any of the duties from which the President is normally excused may be

included in the President's schedule if such is the only means by which the President can be assigned 25 student instruction-supervision periods per week.

- P. The President shall have freedom to leave the President's building during any unassigned time as long as the administrator of that building has been duly notified.
- Q. The teacher shall maintain the responsibility to determine grades based upon the teacher's professional judgment within the criteria established by the school system. No grade shall be changed unless the teacher is duly notified in writing. If a student grade evaluation is changed, the person making such change shall initial the change. The teacher assigning the original grade shall be notified within ten (10) days of such change.
- R. Teachers, who are required to serve on jury duty during the contractual year, will submit the stipend paid them to the Board Secretary.
- S. Any criticism by a Supervisor or Administrator of an employee regarding his/her performance shall be done with professional courtesy and respect.
- T. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny either party of any and all rights pursuant to applicable laws and regulations. All terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be in addition to those provided elsewhere. If any inconsistency occurs between this Agreement and applicable laws and regulations then this Agreement governs to the extent permitted by law.

Article V School Calendar

- A. 1. The Superintendent of Schools shall draw up a school calendar to recommend to the Board of Education, and shall consult with the Association, other individuals and organizations within the school system, and, as the Superintendent sees fit, other individuals and organizations.
 - 2. The calendar will consist of 186 days for teachers.
 - 3. All twelve-month teachers shall receive four weeks vacation. The Board shall be the sole judge of the need for ten and/or twelve-month teachers.
 - 4. There shall be a half day of school on the last day before Christmas, the last day of student attendance in June, and on parent conference days.
- B. 1. Due to the uncertain nature of state, federal and local funding, the Board of Education reserves the right to establish the starting and ending dates of the work year for Part-Time Remedial Basic Skills Instructors, which shall consist of a minimum of 135 days.

Article VI

Teaching Hours and Teaching Load

- A. 1. Teachers shall indicate their presence for duty by placing their initials in the appropriate column of the faculty "sign-in" roster and "sign-out" roster.
 - 2. Effective July 1, 1996, the uniform school day shall be 7 hours. Occasionally, teachers may, of necessity, be required to overlap scheduling throughout all periods of the day. Where periods apply, they shall be no less than 40 minutes in duration.
 - 3. Teachers shall be required to report for duty 15 minutes before the start of the pupil day and to remain at least 15 minutes after the pupil day. For reasons of student safety, teachers may be assigned to pupil supervision during the 15 minutes prior to the start of the pupil day; provided, however, any teacher assigned to such duty on a daily basis shall be permitted to leave work 10 minutes before the regular end of the work day on two days a week according to an equitable rotation schedule established by the building principal or shall be granted such alternative duty free time during the work day as may be deemed acceptable by the teacher and the principal.
 - 4. The normal work day for stipend personnel shall not exceed eight (8) hours including lunch. This clause does not preclude evening assignments as presently required by the position or of an emergency nature.
 - 5. Special Education teachers shall work the same length of school day, and shall have a homeroom or other alternative morning assignment as all other classroom teachers.

- 6. All teachers in the Middle School shall teach six (6) periods.
- 7. The normal workday for school nurses shall be the same as that of the teachers.
- B. 1. All teachers will be assured a duty-free lunch period as provided by the Rules and Regulations of the State Department of Education, Title VI of the New Jersey Administrative Code.
 - 2. Teachers may leave the building without requestting permission during their scheduled duty-free lunch period if they sign in and out. With the approval of the building principal, teachers may leave the building during their professional periods.
 - Building-based teachers may be required to remain after the end of the regular work day, without additional compensation, for the purpose of attending three (3) general faculty or departmental meetings per month. Additional meetings may be required, if an emergency so dictates. Such meeting alter the begin no later than fifteen (15) minutes after the regular student dismissal time and shall run no more than fifty (50) minutes. There shall be no restrictions placed upon the number of meetings required for officially required evaluations or functioning committees.
 - 2. An Association representative may speak to the teachers at the end of any meeting referred to in Paragraph I above on the request of the representative.
 - 3. The notice of an agenda for faculty meetings shall be given to the teachers involved at least one school day prior to the meeting, except in an emergency.

Teachers shall have the opportunity to suggest items for the agenda.

- D. 1. Classroom teachers in grades four though eight inclusive shall have one preparation period per day. Elementary school teachers shall not be required to remain with specialists who are conducting their classes.
 - 2. All primary level teachers as well as all teachers in the District, including classroom teachers, Special Education teachers, and teachers of special subject areas, shall be granted one duty-free preparation period per day.
- E. Teacher participation in extra-curricular activity shall be in accordance with the rulings of the Commissioner of Education.
- F. Meetings which take place after the regular school work day and which require attendance shall not be called on Fridays or any day immediately preceding any holiday except in the case of emergency.
- G. There shall be a maximum of five evening meetings per year that all teachers must attend to provide communication between teachers and parents. A minimum school day will be scheduled on the day of an evening meeting. On one of those days, there shall be a regular school day in addition to the evening conference.
- H. The Board shall set the teaching hours of Part-time Remedial Basic Skills Instructors due to the uncertain nature of state, federal, and local funding.

Article VII (Reserved)

Article VIII Non-Teaching Duties

- A. Teachers may not be required to collect funds for any purpose from students or staff members. Teachers may not collect funds from students without the consent of the Board of Education.
- B. Except as authorized by the Board of Education no teacher shall use the teacher's personal vehicle to transport students. Teachers who are so authorized or who as part of their regular teaching assignment move from one school to another school will be reimbursed at the rate per mile authorized by the Internal Revenue Service for mileage deductions.
- C. Classroom teachers shall continue walking their students to the bus. If a teacher is required to supervise bus loading and unloading, the teacher shall be paid at the rate of:

2000-2003 \$14.80 per hour

D. The Board shall continue to comply with the provisions of the Save Harmless Act and the provisions of Title 18A amended in regard to the protection of its teachers against civil action (18A: 16-6).

Article IX Teacher Employment

- A. 1. It is agreed and understood that upon initial employment, the teacher shall be placed on the salary guide no higher than present employees with the same amount of years of experience.
 - 2. The Board reserves to itself the right to grant credit for any experience which it deems of value to the school system at the time of initial employment.
- B. Teachers with previous experience in the Red Bank School District and who were in tenure at the time of their leaving shall, upon returning to the system, receive full credit on the salary schedule for all teaching experience while functioning as an exchange teacher or overseas teacher or who returns from a Sabbatical Leave, provided that such teachers return to the Red Bank School District no later than the beginning of the school year following their release from such service or leave. All such teachers shall also have returned to them all accumulated sick leave.
- C. Teachers shall be notified of their contract and salary status for the ensuing year in accordance with applicable statute and Administrative Code. Tenured teachers will notify the Board within fifteen (15) calendar days after receiving their notification of contract and salary status of their intent to return.
- D. Previously accumulated unused sick leave days will be restored to all teachers returning from a Board-approved leave of absence.
- E. Any teacher employed prior to March 1 of any school year whose term began prior to March 1 shall be given

full credit for one (1) year of service to the next increment step for the following year. Any teacher employed subsequent to March 1 of any school year shall remain on the same step of the salary guide for the following school year. Part-time Remedial Basic Skills Instructors must work at least five months and one day to receive credit for the full year's employment.

- F. The Board shall be guided by the Rules and Regulations of the State Department of Education regarding the reduction of staff. If conditions demand a reduction the Board shall discuss this matter with the Association before the appropriate action is taken.
- G. Should reductions in staff become necessary, teachers to be laid-off will receive written notice of the Board's intention by April 30. The notice will include the method used in selecting those teachers and the reasons for the reduction in staff. Said teachers are to be considered on temporary lay-off and recalled in reverse order of lay-off when vacancies become available. Laid-off teachers who are recalled will be notified of the available position by certified mail at their last known address with a copy of the letter to be sent to the President of the Association. While such a lay-off continues, no new hiring will take place except when:
 - a. no certified teacher on lay-off is best qualified to fill the position in the opinion of the Board based on the recommendation of the Superintendent, or
 - b. all certified teachers on lay-off decline the position. Qualifications shall be subject to the Board's opinion based upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Schools.

Article X Salaries

- A. The salaries of all teachers covered by this Agreement are set forth in the schedules that are attached hereto and made a part hereof (Appendix D, E and F). The Board reserves to itself the right to withhold any and all increments in accordance with Title 18A:29-14. The question of whether the decision to withhold an increment was capriciously reached is the only question in reference to this paragraph which may submitted by the Association to an arbitrator.
- B. 1. Teachers employed on a twelve-month basis or on a ten-month basis shall be paid semi-monthly for the term of their contract.
 - 2. Salary checks are due on the 15th and 30th of the month. Teachers may individually elect to have part of their monthly salary deducted from the pay and forward to MONOC Federal Teachers Credit Union.
 - 3. Teachers may individually elect to have their entire paycheck deposited directly to an account in such banks or credit unions that provide for electronic deposit.
 - 4. Teachers shall be entitled to enroll annually for electronic deposits.
 - 5. When a pay day falls on or during a school holiday, vacation, or weekend, teachers shall receive their pay checks on the last previous working day.
 - 6. Teachers employed on a ten-month basis shall receive their final payment of the school year on

the last working day in June, providing the principal has certified that all of the teacher's work is in and acceptable.

- 7. A teacher shall have the option to enroll in a summer savings program.
- C. Teachers who, during their professional or lunch period, request or are asked to assume classroom or administrative duties, shall be reimbursed at the following rates: 2000-2003 \$16.55 per hour

Teachers shall be reimbursed for lunchroom duties at the rate of:

2000-2003 \$14.80 per hour

- D. Teachers who are assigned extra work-extra pay responsibilities shall be paid as set forth in Appendix C which is attached hereto and made a part hereof. Teachers receiving a specified sum for extra work/extra pay position shall be paid at either the completion of the activity or, for year-long activities, one-half payment at the end of the third marking period and the remainder at the end of the year. Teachers must indicate the method of payment at the beginning of the year on the proper form. Payment for hourly positions shall be made upon submission of time sheets.
- E. All employees assigned to tutoring or home instruction shall be paid at the following rate:2000-2003 \$17.25 per hour
- F. 1. A stipend in addition to the appropriate step on the compressed salary guide shall be paid for all positions which, from September 1 through and including June 29, specify a daily time requirement of eight (8) hours in a continuous block of time

between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. These positions include psychologist, social worker, guidance counselor, student/family counselor, learningdisability teacher consultant, facilitators of computer instructional programs, student assistance advisor, and substance abuse counselor. The stipend for these positions shall be as follows:

2000-2003 \$2,900.00

- An additional one-tenth (1/10) of an individual's 2 salary guide position in addition to the stipends set forth in F.1 above, shall be paid to any position listed in subparagraph F.1 above if the Board, in its sole discretion, designates it to be an eleven-month position.
- Employees will be paid for the development and 3. writing of curriculum and teaching units at the following rate: 2000-2003 \$19.25 per hour
- All present extra-work/extra-pay positions shall be paid at a flat stipend (see Appendix C). New positions shall be covered under the position described as "After-School Assignment."
- Part-time Remedial Basic Skills Instructors shall be paid H. an hourly rate according to the following guides:

	2000-2001	2001-2002	2002-2003			
0 to 1 years experience						
in Red Bank	\$22.11/hr	\$23.10/hr	\$24.02/hr			
2 years experience						
in Red Bank	\$23.16/hr	\$24.20/hr.	\$25.17/hr			
3 years experience						
in Red Bank	\$24.73/hr	\$25.84/hr	\$26.87/hr			
4 or more years						
experience in Red Banl	k \$26.83/hr	\$28.04/hr	\$29.16/hr			

Article XI Teacher Assignment

- A. Assignment shall be made at the discretion of the administration and within the area of teacher competency, teaching certificate, or the major or minor field of study, except for good cause.
- B. All teachers shall be given written notice for the class, subject, and building assignment for the forthcoming year not later than May 30. Should changes in assignment become necessary after that date, teachers shall be notified as soon as possible of the change that affects them.
- C. The parties recognize that changes in grade assignment and transfers between schools may be necessary. While the right of determination to assign or transfer a teacher is vested in the Board, the Board will not assign or transfer a teacher without prior discussion with that teacher. If such teacher is not readily available, the teacher shall be notified by registered mail of such reassignment or transfer. The discussion shall only be informative in nature. The teacher's consent to such transfer will not be required.
- D. Schedules of teachers who are assigned to more than one school shall be arranged so that no such teacher shall be required to engage in an unreasonable amount of inter-school travel. Such teachers shall be notified of any changes in their schedule as soon as practicable.
- E. As any vacancy is officially made known to him/her, the Superintendent shall have posted on Association bulletin boards in all school buildings, within five (5) school days after the Board meeting at which it took action upon that vacancy, a listing of known vacancies that shall occur during that year or the following year.

- F. A teacher may apply for any position by sending a letter of interest for the position. The letter of interest shall be in writing, addressed to the Superintendent of Schools and shall include any additional education and/or experience that the teacher may have received and which is not included in the teacher's file.
- G. All job openings, including summer employment, will be adequately announced and a notice of such openings be posted in each building at least ten (10) calendar days before the vacancy is to be filled except in the case of emergencies.

Article XII Teacher Evaluation

- A. Procedures for teacher evaluation shall be in conformance with statute and the rules and regulations of the State Department of Education as may be determined by judicial authority.
- B. 1. All tenured teachers shall be observed and evaluated a minimum of once yearly and all non-tenured teachers shall be observed at least four times a year and evaluated at least three times per year. All monitoring or observation of the work performance of a teacher shall be conducted openly and with full knowledge of the teacher. The Superintendent shall designate certificated personnel responsible for the formal written evaluation of teachers and teachers will be advised of the titles of such individuals.
 - 2. A teacher shall be given a copy of any formal observation reports prepared by his evaluator within ten (10) school days of the observation and a conference will be held to discuss it. No such observation report shall be submitted to the central office, placed in the personnel file, or otherwise acted upon without an opportunity for a conference between the teacher and evaluator. The teacher shall sign the observation form as an acknowledgment of having seen the report and comments.
 - 3. A conference shall be held no sooner than three(3) school days after receipt by the teacher of the written observation report. In no case shall an observation for the purpose of formal evaluation be conducted sooner than ten (10) school days following the conference concerning a previous formal classroom observation. At such a conference the teacher

shall be prepared to discuss with his supervisor and/or administrator his strengths and weaknesses, and means by which strengths can be continued and weaknesses improved. Prior to the time of the evaluation conference the administrator will notify the teacher of the date and will supply the teacher with a blank evaluation form. Both the administrator and teacher shall complete the forms prior to the conference and shall discuss them at the meeting.

- 4. No evaluation shall be made by the administrator, department chairman, or supervisor after the termination of a teacher nor shall any derogatory material be placed in the file after the teacher leaves employment with the exception that any continuing material which is initiated prior to termination, and completed after termination, shall go into the personal file. Any material in regard to a continuing grievance shall be placed in a separate grievance file pursuant to Article III.
- 5. All employees shall be given an original signed copy of all formal observations and formal evaluations.
- school day shall have the right, upon one school day's notice, to review the content of his/her personal file after school hours and to make reproduction of non-confidential file materials at the teacher's expense. In the event of removal of confidential materials from the teacher's file, a dated notation will be placed in the teacher's file stating that confidential materials, other than credentials involved in the hiring process, have been removed.
- 2. If, upon reviewing the teacher's personal file, the teacher desires to answer any material that is available for the

teacher's inspection in that file, the teacher may make such answer and have it placed in the file.

- D. Any written complaints regarding a teacher made to any member of the Administration by any parent, student, or other person which are or may be used in any manner in evaluating a teacher and which is to be placed in a teacher's file shall be processed as follows:
 - (1) The principal or immediate superior shall meet with the teacher to apprise the teacher of the full nature of the complaint and they shall attempt to resolve the matter informally. The teacher may make a written statement concerning the written complaint and have such statement placed in the teacher's file;
 - (2) If a complaint could result in disciplinary action being taken against the teacher, the teacher shall be notified of the complaint and provided a copy of the written complaint within seven (7) school days of the receipt of the complaint by the administrator;
 - (3) Any teacher who is the subject of any complaint shall be entitled to representation by the Association at any meeting related to said investigations or complaint.
- E. Although the Board agrees to protect the confidentiality of personal references, academic credentials, and other similar documents, it shall under no circumstances establish any separate personnel file or personal file which is not available for the teacher's inspection.
- F. Part-Time Remedial Basic Skills Instructors shall be evaluated as per teacher evaluation procedures.

Article XIII Teacher Facilities

- A. The Board will continue its efforts to keep the schools reasonably and properly equipped and maintained.
- B. The Board shall make available, if practicable, in each school an adequately furnished and decorated lounge and/or work-study room and/or dining area for the teachers. When practicable and possible, separate lavatory facilities, exclusive for teacher use, shall also be made available.
- C. The Association will be provided with office space, if, in the opinion of the Board, such space is available. The Association will be given two weeks notice to vacate office space should this become necessary.

Article XIV Teacher - Administrative Liaison

- A. The Association representatives shall meet with the Superintendent, and such administrators as the Superintendent selects, normally once a month with not more than two months elapsing between meetings, to review and discuss current school problems and practices. This committee in no way alters or modifies that function of any committee which has been or shall be established by the administration.
- B. The Association shall select a Faculty Council of not more than five (5) teachers from the building to meet with the Principal each school month. Areas for consideration shall be limited to current building problems and practices only and shall not include discussion of grievances or the administration of the Contract. The Council and the principal shall exchange agenda at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the meeting and it shall require mutual agreement to deviate from the agenda. All meetings shall take place after school hours and shall provide opportunity for all items on both agenda to be discussed. Minutes of each meeting shall be kept.
- C. It is understood that such meetings are only advisory in nature.

Article XV Sick Leave

- A. As of September 1995, annually, all teachers shall be entitled to ten (10) sick days. In accordance with statute, this shall be as of the first official day of said school year, whether or not they report for duty on that day. Unused sick leave days shall be accumulated from year to year with no maximum limit.
- B. Any teacher may request non-accumulative sick leave benefits according to the following schedule: up to forty (40) days additional sick leave for major illness without any cost to the teacher may be requested of the Board by the individual teacher. The Board has the sole right to determine whether such additional leave shall be granted or denied based upon the circumstances presented.
- C. At the time of hiring a new teacher, the Board will grant two days of sick leave per year of service in another school district up to a maximum of twenty (20) days of sick leave to the newly hired teacher. Such granted sick leave must be based upon the newly hired teacher having unused accumulated leave which had been earned elsewhere.
- D. Teachers will be entitled to receive sick leave pay for absence due to childbirth only for those specific days for which their doctor has certified them to be sick.
- E. Teachers employed during the summer months shall be granted non-accumulative sick leave at the rate of one day for each two week period.
- F. All teachers who have completed twenty (20) years of teaching service in the Red Bank School District will be paid in lieu of accumulated sick leave at a rate of \$40.00

per day to a maximum of \$3,200 upon retirement, provided that during the life of this agreement the maximum shall be \$4,800. In order to be eligible to receive this benefit, the teacher must notify the Board in writing by February 1 of the year of retirement that the teacher intends to retire. The letter of intent may be withdrawn no later than March 15 of that year. A teacher must submit a letter of retirement to be effective no later than June 30. The payment in lieu will be paid on July 1 of that year.

Article XVI Temporary Leave of Absence

- A. Teachers shall be entitled to the following temporary non-accumulative leaves of absence with full pay each school year, and such days of temporary leave must be taken as full school days:
- 1. Five days of leave in the event of death in the immediate family. (Immediate family to mean spouse, significant other, child, parent, step-parent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother, sister, grandchild, grandparent, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, or other relative living in the home or whom employee supports.)
- 2. Up to three days of leave in the event of serious illness in the immediate family.
- 3. Up to four days of leave to cover the following continngencies:
 - a. Religious observance
 - b. Death of a relative or close friend
 - c. Subpoena to appear in court as a defendant
 - d. Attendance at professional meeting, conserved and conventions
 - e. For the purpose of receiving a degree
 - f. For the purpose of a school visitation
 - g. To take special professional examination for advance study
 - h. Legal, personal, medical and business affairs.
- 4. As provided in 3h. above, personal affairs may not include leave for vacation.
- 5. In the event a teacher wishes to accompany the teacher's spouse on a business related trip, the teacher may apply

to the Board for such unpaid leave of absence as may be necessary up to a maximum of three days.

- B. Leave as provided under sub-paragraph 1, 2, 3, and 4 above is not cumulative and may not be transferred from one category to another with the exception that leave available under paragraphs 3 and 4 may be transferred to paragraph 1. If such transfer leave is necessary, it shall provide for a maximum of five non-accumulative days and only in the event of a second occurrence in the school year of a death in the immediate family.
- C. Request for leave under this Article shall be submitted to the building principal who is empowered to grant it with due regard to the requirements of that school. Except for emergencies or extenuating circumstances, no leave shall be permitted the day prior to or the day following a school holiday or weekend.
- D. Except in cases of emergency, all requests for leave shall be submitted in writing prior to the date requested, stating the reason for the request. After approval by the principal, the request shall be filed in the Office of the Superintendent of Schools.
- E. Employees who have been requested by the Superintendent of Schools to represent the Red Bank Public Schools at professional meetings, to visit other school systems or to be absent from their regular duties for other professional reasons shall not be charged with absence or suffer loss of salary.
- F. Personal days may be taken either as a whole day, or with 48 hours notice, as a half-day.
- G. 1. In the event a teacher has not utilized all leave days as outlined in Paragraph A, Section 3 of this

Article, up to two (2) such days shall be converted to sick leave, following the end of the school year, and may be accumulated in the teacher's sick leave bank.

- 2. In addition to Section 1 above, if the teacher has used none of the leave days as outlined in Paragraph A, Section 3 of this Article, the teacher shall be paid a stipend of \$25.00 at the end of the school year.
- 3. In the event a teacher has maintained perfect attendance for the year, exclusive of approved professional/workshop days, the teacher shall be paid a stipend of \$100, inclusive of the amount in Section 2 above, at the end of the school year.

Article XVII Extended Leave of Absence Maternity Leave

- A. Leaves of absence for maternity may be granted to teachers, who are under tenure when the application is made, for a period up to two (2) years upon application by the candidate on the advice and recommendation of a reputable physician. When a position exists which a teacher is qualified to fill, the candidate may return to service at the beginning of any semester within the two year period.
 - 1. Application for the leave should be made not later than the beginning of the third trimester.
 - 2. Any teacher on maternity leave shall notify the Board prior to March 1 whether it is her intention to return to her teaching duty in the next school year.
 - 3. Those teachers granted a leave of absence for maternity purposes are excluded from the benefits of sick leave except as provided in Paragraph D of Article XV.

Leave for Adoption of Infant Child

B. Leaves of absence for the adoption of an infant child may be granted to teachers, who are under tenure when application is made, for a period up to two (2) years upon the application by the candidate. When a position exists which a teacher is qualified to fill, the candidate may return to service at the beginning of any semester within the two year period.

- 1. Application for the leave should be made not later than three (3) months before the anticipated custody of the child by the teacher.
- 2. Those teachers granted a leave of absence for the adoption of an infant child are excluded from the benefits of sick leave.
- 3. Any teacher on adoption leave shall notify the Board prior to March 1 whether it is the teacher's intention to return to teaching duties in the next school year.

Sabbatical Leave

- C. Full time professional staff members are eligible to apply for sabbatical leave in accordance with the following provisions:
 - 1. Only permanently certificated personnel who have completed a minimum of seven (7) years of continuous service in Red Bank are eligible.
 - 2. Sabbatical leave shall be used for the purpose of graduate study or its equivalent. Utilization of sabbatical leave to engage in employment in other institutions or agencies will not be permitted.
 - 3. Sabbatical Leave shall normally be for a full year.
 - 4. The term of sabbatical leave shall coincide with the regular school year (July 1 June 30).
 - 5. Not more than two staff members will be eligible for sabbatical leave during one school year.
 - 6. Participants in the program shall be awarded half-pay for a full year's leave for full time study. Full time study means a minimum of twelve (12) credits per semester and one (1) year equals two (2) semesters.

- 7. Participants in the Sabbatical Leave Program are free to accept governmental and private grants to supplement their salary, however, the total income shall not exceed the participant's salary as a member of the staff.
- 8. All awards under the Sabbatical Leave Program are contingent upon the participant remaining a member of the staff of the Red Bank Public Schools for a minimum of two (2) full years following the participant's return from Sabbatical Leave. If the participant leaves the school district prior to the aforementioned two (2) year period, then the participant shall repay the Board the monies it received from the Board for the Sabbatical Leave.
- 9. Teachers interested in applying for sabbatical leave should submit their applications to the Office of the Superintendent no later than April 1 preceding the year of leave. The Board shall issue its determination no later than May 15.
- 10. The sabbatical leave shall be computed as equivalent to teaching experience in determining future salary status providing the teacher does not, at the same time, move laterally to the next higher salary scale.
- 11. Persons on sabbatical leave shall submit a document at the end of the study, of sufficient quality in the judgment of the Superintendent of Schools, to be placed in the teacher's professional library.
- 12. Proposed programs must be approved by the Superintendent and the Board of Education.
- 13. A teacher on tenure shall be granted a leave of absence without pay for up to one year to teach in

an accredited college or university. All benefits to which the teacher was entitled at the time such leave of absence commenced, including credits towards sabbatical leave and sick leave, shall be restored to the teacher upon return to teaching service within the district.

Other Extended Leaves of Absence

- D. Other than maternity, adoption, sabbatical, military, or severe illness leave, the following limitations are placed upon the granting of all other extended leaves which are granted without pay:
 - 1. All leave shall be granted only to a teacher having tenure;
 - 2. All leaves shall be for one school year or for two school years only;
 - 3. A leave shall be granted only if a satisfactory replacement teacher is available and hired;
 - 4. No more than two teachers in the district shall be on such leave in any school year.
- E. Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable State or Federal law.
- F. A leave of absence, in accordance with Paragraph D of the Article, shall be granted to a teacher who joins the Peace Corps, Vista, National Teacher Corps, serves as an exchange teacher, and is a full time participant in any such program or accepts a Fulbright Scholarship, or who requests such leave for the purpose of caring for a sick member of the teacher's immediate family.

Article XVIII Professional Development and Educational Improvement

The Board agrees to reimbursement of the cost of graduate credits subject to the following provisions.

- A. The teacher must possess a standard certificate in his area of function.
- B. The teacher must either be accepted and enrolled for a program leading to a Master's Degree in a field directly related to education or must request and receive approval in advance for graduate level studies in the field of the applicant's assignment in the teacher's school situation.
 - 1. The Superintendent shall have the authority to approve all courses to be submitted for reimbursement prior to enrollment in such courses. Failure to obtain Superintendent prior approval shall result in denial of reimbursement.
 - 2. Whenever the Superintendent disapproves a course to be submitted for reimbursement, the Superintendent shall indicate the disapproval in writing and transmit it to the applicant immediately upon making such determination, including within the reason for such disapproval.
- C. If the teacher possesses a Masters Degree, the teacher must then be enrolled in a program leading either to the Masters Degree, Doctorate or Specialist directly related to education or must request and receive approval in advance for post-Master graduate level studies in the field of the applicant's assignment in the teacher's school situation.

- D. All teachers presently enrolled in a graduate studies approved by the Superintendent of Schools and/or those teachers matriculated into a graduate program approved by the Superintendent of Schools shall be eligible for 15 graduate credits per year. Effective date is March 12, 2001. All other teachers shall be eligible for 6 graduate credits per year with the Superintendent of Schools approval. Effective date is March 12, 2001. Graduate credits shall be reimbursed at the prevailing Rutgers State University rate.
- E. The teacher must submit an official transcript and make application on or before October 1 for the preceding spring and/or summer term and March 1 for the preceding fall term. To be reimbursed applicants must be employees of the school system at the time application is made for reimbursement. Tuition payment shall be made within sixty (60) days after submission of college transcripts.
- F. The teacher must receive a grade of "A" or "B" or its equivalent. Only if the university or college involved has specified in its catalog that the specific course in question is graded only as "pass" or "fail", a grade of "pass" will be acceptable for reimbursement.
- G. The Board shall establish a grant program to encourage creative and innovative teachers to experiment in improving instruction and student learning during both the ten-month school year and the summer. These proposed program grants must clearly define the objectives of the program and demonstrate measurable criteria for the accomplishment of objectives;

- 1. Proposal grants during the school year shall be adjunct to the regular teaching schedule and workday. Grants will include salary remuneration only when determined by the Superintendent that the project demands weekend, holiday, significant evening, or summer activity. Any salary remuneration and other funds to support the proposal shall be made on the recommendation of and at the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools.
- 2. Applications for grants during the summer should be filed by April 15. Applications for grants for the school year must be submitted no later than August 15.
- 3. Grants shall be limited to a minimum of \$100.00 and to a maximum of \$1,000.00.

The amount of grant shall be determined by means of the following formula: the annual salary of the individual making application divided by 1300 times the estimated hours mutually agreed upon between the individual making the application and the Superintendent of Schools. The tasks called for in the proposal must be completed in their entirety in order for the individual making application to receive payment.

- 4. The total amount of grants shall not exceed \$6,000.00 in any year July 1 through and including June 30. Proposals must be submitted in writing (see Appendix B), either individually or by a group of teachers, and reviewed by the building principal, with the principal's formal recommendation or lack of recommendation to the Superintendent of Schools, who makes the final recommendation to the Board.
- 5. Should funds not be available in the budget for such mini-grant program, such programs shall not be approved.

- H. A teacher is to be moved across the salary guide as soon as that teacher has completed required courses and an official transcript has been received in the Superintendent's Office. Prior notification that this move is likely must be made in writing to the Office of the Superintendent upon registration for said courses.
- I. Representatives designated by the Association will be involved in the planning of any in-service program for district employees.

Article XIX Protection of Teachers, Students, and Property

- A. The Board shall give support including legal and other assistance for any assault upon the teacher while acting in the discharge of his duties. Financial support shall be limited to reasonable counsel fees.
- B. 1. Teachers shall immediately report cases of assault suffered by them in connection with their employment to their principal or other immediate superior. This should be done on appropriate forms.
 - 2. Such notification shall be immediately forwarded to the Superintendent by the building principal who shall comply with any reasonable request from the teacher for information in the possession of the Superintendent relating to the incident or the persons involved and shall act in appropriate ways as liaisons between the teacher, the police, and the courts.
 - 3. The Board of Education shall not be required to provide access to those student records deemed to be confidential under Federal or State law or by order of a court of competent jurisdiction.

Article XX Maintenance of Classroom Control and Discipline

- A. The Board recognizes its responsibility to continue to give administrative support and backing to its teachers, although each teacher bears the primary responsibility for maintaining control and discipline in the classroom. The teachers recognize that all disciplinary actions and methods invoked by them shall be reasonable and just and in accordance with established Board policy. It shall be the responsibility of the teacher to report to the teacher's principal in writing, on forms provided, the name of any student who, in the opinion of the teacher, needs particular assistance from skilled personnel. The teacher shall be advised by the principal of the disposition of the teacher's report that a particular student needs such assistance.
- B. Each principal at the first faculty meeting of the school year will inform the faculty of the procedure in discipline cases. Each principal shall work out particular rules and regulations with his/her professional staff through a building committee consisting of two (2) Association appointed members and two (2) representatives of the Administration. This committee shall report to the staff any changes or additions to the disciplinary procedure.
- C. If a teacher is dissatisfied with administrative action in any specific discipline case in which such teacher is involved, the teacher may request and meet with the building administrator in charge of discipline.

Article XXI Insurance Protection

The parties agree that all members of the bargaining unit shall enroll in the New Jersey State Health Benefit Plan for health benefits under the Plan's terms and conditions, excluding dental and prescription coverage. Dental and prescription coverage, as set forth in Article XXI, (D) and (E) will remain unchanged.

The Board of Education reserves the right to change carriers provided the coverage involved is equal to or better than the coverage as of the date of the change.

- A. 1. The Board shall continue to provide the health care insurance protection designated below and shall fully pay the premium for each teacher and the teacher's dependents. Persons working less than 30 hours per week shall not be entitled to fringe benefits.
 - 2. Part-Time Remedial Basic Skills Teachers shall be permitted to purchase Health Care Insurance for themselves and their dependents at the group rate.
- B. The insurance program encompassed by this Agreement consists of:
 - 1. Hospital benefits
 - 2. Surgical benefits
 - 3. X-ray/Laboratory benefits
 - 4. Major medical benefits

- C. The Board agrees to provide each new teacher a description of health care insurance coverage provided under this Article, which shall include a clear description of conditions and limits of coverage as listed above.
- D. The Board shall continue to provide dental care cover age and shall pay the premium for the teacher and the teacher's dependents.
- E. The Board shall provide a Prescription Plan with a \$10.00 co-pay. Coverage for oral contraceptives has been dropped.
- F. All caps, if any, shall be increased so that no cost shall be borne by the teachers regarding insurance protection.

Article XXII Deduction from Salary

A. The Board agrees to deduct, from the salaries of its teachers, dues for the Red Bank Borough Education Association, the Monmouth County Education Association, the New Jersey Education Association, and the National Education Association as said teachers individually and voluntarily authorize the Board to deduct. Such deductions shall be made in compliance with applicable New Jersey Statutes and under rules established by the State Department of Education. Said monies together with records of any corrections shall be transmitted to NJEA by the 15th of each month following the monthly pay period in which deductions were made. Teacher authorizations shall be in writing in the form set forth below:

Authorization to Deduct Association Membership Dues

1	Name
	Social Security #
	School Building
	District
Го:	Disbursing Officer
	Board of Education

I hereby request and authorize the above named disbursing officer to deduct from my earnings an amount sufficient to provide for the payment of those yearly membership dues as certified by the organizations indicated in equal monthly payments for all or part of the current school year and for succeeding school years. I understand that the disbursing officer will discontinue such deductions only if I file such notice of withdrawal as of the January 1 or July 1 next succeeding the date on which notice of withdrawal is filed. I also agree that upon termination of employment, the disbursing officer shall deduct any remaining amount due for the current school year. I hereby waive all right and claim for said monies so deducted and transmitted in accordance with this authorization, and relieve the governing board and all of its officers from any liability therefore.

I designate the Association to receive dues and distribute according to the organization(s) indicated:

Association
County Education Association
New Jersey Education Association
National Education Association

- 1. Each of the associations named above shall certify to the Board, in writing, the current rate of its membership dues. Any association which shall change the rate of its membership dues shall give the Board written notice prior to the effective date or such change.
- 2. Additional authorizations for dues deduction may be received after August 1 under rules established by the State Department of Education.
- 3. Any such written authorization may be withdrawn by any teacher at any time by the filing of notice of such withdrawal with the disbursing officer. The

filing of notice of withdrawal shall be effective to halt deductions as of the January 1 or July 1 next succeeding the date on which the notice of withdrawal is filed.

B. Teachers shall be authorized to select tax shelters of their choice only if one company agrees to function as receiving and disbursing agent in relationship to all participating companies.

Article XXIII Miscellaneous Provisions

- A. If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any employee or groups of employees is held to be contrary to law, then such provisions or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.
- B. Any individual contract between the Board and an individual teacher, heretofore or hereafter executed, shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If an individual contract contains any language inconsistent with the Agreement, the Agreement, during its duration, shall be controlling.
- C. The Board and the Association agree that there shall be no discrimination, and that all practices, procedures, and policies of the school system shall clearly exemplify that there is no discrimination in the hiring, training, assignment, promotion, transfer, or discipline of teachers or in the application or administration of this Agreement on the basis of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, sex, domicile, or marital status, age or sexual orientation.
- D. Whenever any notice is required to be given by either of the parties to this Agreement to the other, pursuant to the provision(s) of this Agreement, either party shall do so by telegram, telefax, registered letter, or hand delivery to the following addresses:
 - If by Association, to Board at 76 Branch Avenue, Red Bank, New Jersey
 - 2. If by Board, to the Association President's current address.

- E. Nothing in this Agreement which changes pre-existing Board policy, rules, or regulations shall operate retroactively unless expressly so stated.
- F. The parties agree that teachers shall continue to serve under the direction of the Superintendent of Schools and in accordance with Board and Administrative Policies, Rules, and Regulations provided that the provisions of this Agreement shall supersede and prevail over any conflicting provisions.
- G. It is understood that, under the rulings of the courts of New Jersey and the State Commissioner of Education, the Board of Education is forbidden to waive any rights or powers granted it by law.
- H. Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, nothing contained in any section, paragraph, or sub-section of this Agreement shall be construed as to indicate that the Board has waived rights which are expressly required by the courts to be retained by the Board.
- I. The cost of printing copies of this Agreement shall be shared by the parties and a copy of the printed Agreement shall be presented to all teachers.
- J. Any full-time teacher in attendance at the yearly New Jersey Education Association Convention and who makes a purchase of educational materials from an exhibitor shall be reimbursed up to a maximum of twenty dollars (\$20.00) upon presentation of a paid receipt.
- K. The Board shall provide a copy of written Board policies to the Association.
- L. Teachers shall be reimbursed for legitimate travel in the course of their professional duties at the rate per mile authorized by the Internal Revenue Service for mileage deductions.

Article XXIV Representation Fee

- 1. The Association shall, on or before September 30, deliver to the Board a written statement containing the following:
 - a) A statement that the Association has determined the amount of representation fee in accordance with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 34:13A-5.4.
 - b) A statement that the Association has established a "demand and return system" in accordance with the requirements of N.J.S.A. 34:13A-5.4.
 - c) A statement establishing the amount of yearly representation fees to be deducted from the salaries of each non-member. Such representation fee shall not exceed eighty-five percent (85%) of the regular membership dues, fees, and assessments.
 - d) A list of all employees who have failed to arrange for and become members of the Association and a request that the representation fee of such non-members be deducted in accordance with this Agreement.
- 2. Beginning with the first full pay period in November, the

Board will commence deductions from salaries of such employees in accordance with Paragraph "3" below, of the full amount of the representation fee and will promptly transit the amount so deducted to the Association.

3. The Board will deduct the representation fee, in equal

installments, as nearly as possible, from the paychecks paid to each employee on the aforesaid list, during the remainder of the membership year in question. The deductions will begin with the first paycheck:

- a) In November; or
- b) Thirty (30) days after the teacher begins the teacher's employment in a bargaining unit position, unless the teacher previously served in a bargaining unit position or was on lay-off, in which event, the deductions will begin with the first paycheck paid ten (10) days after the resumption of the teacher's employment in a bargaining unit position, whichever is later. The mechanics for deduction of representation fees and the transmission of such fees due to the Association as nearly as possible, shall be the same as those used for the deduction of regular membership to the Association.
- 4. On or about the last day of each month, beginning with the month this Agreement became effective, the Board will submit to the Association a list of all employees who began their employment in a bargaining unit position during the preceding thirty (30) day period. The list will include names, job titles, and dates of employment for all such employees.
- 5. The Association hereby agrees to indemnify, defend, and save harmless the Board from any claim, suit, or action of any nature whatsoever which may be brought at law or in equity, or before any administrative agency with regard to or arising from the deduction from the salaries of any employee of any sum of money as a representation fee under the provisions of this Agreement.

Article XXV **Duration of Agreement**

This Agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2000, and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2003. This Agreement shall not be extended orally and it is expressly understood that it shall expire on the date indicated.

In witness whereof the parties have caused this Agreement to be signed by their respective Presidents, and attested to by their respective Secretaries, all on the day and year first above written.

Red Bank Borough Education Association

President

Negotiations Chair

As agreed: March 12, 2001

Red Bank Board of Education

As agreed: March 12, 2001

Appendix A

Grievance	#				
	GRIEVA	NCE REP	ORT Distribution of Form		
	ncipal or Immediate	e Superior	 Principal Association Teacher 		
Building	Assignment	Name of Grievant	Date Filed		
	(STEP I			
A. Date (Cause of Griev	ance Occurred			
B. 1. S	Statement of G	rievance			
2. Relief	Sought				
	nal space is need dditional sheet		g Section Bl and 2,		
S	Signature of Tea	acher and/or As	sociation Officer		
Ι	Date				

	Signature of Principal or
	Immediate Superior
	Date
D.	Position of Grievant and/or Association
ritteritari	
	Signature Date
Step	II and Step III are on reverse side.
	STEP II
A.	Date Received by Superintendent or Designee _
B.	Disposition of Superintendent or Designee
	Signature Date
C.	Position of Grievant and/or Association

STEP III

	Date of Decisio					
	Signature	Date				
B. 	Disposition & Award	of Arbitrator	\$ ·			
D	Diamaniai an Or Assumed	a.C. A. ula itunata a				
A.	Date Submitted to Arbitration					

Appendix B Mini-Grant Application Format & Guidelines

I. Title

A simple descriptive title providing a means of identifying and handling a grant when it is considered, approved, and/or evaluated.

II. Subject Area

What area of the curriculum or staff development is addressed by this grant.

III. Need or Problem

What specific educational or instructional need or area difficulty does the applicant expect this grant to solve

IV. Project Description

A. Overview of the Project

The applicant should provide a general description of the project

B. Target group to be served

Which particular group of students or staff would benefit from the project

C. Target Completion Date

The estimated date by which the applicant expected the project to be finished.

V. Objectives

A careful, complete specification of what the project would achieve; what deliverables would be provided, what long-term, institutionalized benefits would accrue to the target group and to the District

VI. Activities

A. Tasks performed by the applicant in the course of the project

B. Actions done by the target group in the course of the project

VII. Costs

- A. Time required by the project of the grantee
- B. Materials required by the project including reasons for their selection
- C. Cost calculations
 - 1. Labor costs as determined by the contract formula
 - 2. Material cost estimates

Note: Any equipment which might be required in the course of the project must be handled through the normal budgetary process.

VIII. Evaluation

Describe exactly how the successful achievement of the objectives listed above would be determined, what measurements would be taken, etc.

Appendix C Extra Work/Extra Pay Positions

7	POSITION ATHLETICS	2000-2003
	Athletic Director	19.25/hr
/200 .72000	Soccer Coach	1,550.00
	Boys' Basketball	2,150.00
	Assistant Coach	1,400.00
	Girls' Basketball	2,150.00
	Boys' Track	1,550.00
	Girls' Track	1,550.00
	Softball	1,550.00
	Baseball	1,550.00
	Intramural	19.25/hr
	Team Recordkeeper	13.40/hr
	Sports Official	19.25/hr
	Cheerleading Advisor	1,325.00
	COORDINATORS	.,
٠	Early Childhood	19.25/hr
	Latchkey	18.00/hr
	Summer School Teacher	19.25/hr
	Parent	19.25/hr
	CERTIFIED SUPPORT POSITIONS	
	ESL Translator	19.25/hr
	Latchkey Teacher	18.00/hr
	Overnight Trip Supervisor	90.25/night
	Summer School Teacher	19.25/hr
	MONITORS	
	After-School Activity	19.25/hr
	OTHER POSITIONS	
	After-School Assignment	19.25/hr
	Middle School Band	935.00
	Primary School Band	935.00
	Chorus	935.00
	Future Teachers	19.25/hr
	Homework	19.25/hr
	Home Arts	19.25/hr
	Photography	19.25/hr
	Steel Band	2,325.00
5	Student Council	775.00
	Technology Club	1,250.00
	Yearbook	775.00

Overnight Trip Supervisors: Individuals shall choose either the specified monetary payment or compensatory release time at the rate of one day released for each night of the trip. The release time shall be taken during the month of June in the year the trip occurred.

APPENDIX D 2000-01

STEP	BA	B15	B30	MA	M15	M30	PHD
START	35,240	36,040	36,840	37,950	38,750	39,550	40,350
1	35,240	36,040	36,840	37,950	38,750	39,550	40,350
2	35,240	36,040	36,840	37,950	38,750	39,550	40,350
3	35,240	36,040	36,840	37,950	38,750	39,550	40,350
4	35,240	36,040	36,840	37,950	38,750	39,550	40,350
5	36,080	36,880	37,680	38,790	39,590	40,390	41,190
6	37,280	38,080	38,880	39,990	40,790	41,590	42,390
7	39,640	40,440	41,240	42,350	43,150	43,950	44,750
8	41,010	41,810	42,610	43,720	44,520	45,320	46,120
9	42,490	43,290	44,090	45,200	46,000	46,800	47,600
10	44,140	44,940	45,740	46,850	47,650	48,450	49,250
11	46,140	46,940	47,740	48,850	49,650	50,450	51,250
12	48,090	48,890	49,690	50,800	51,600	52,400	53,200
13	50,040	50,840	51,640	52,750	53,550	54,350	55,150
14	51,990	52,790	53,590	54,700	55,500	56,300	57,100
15	53,940	54,740	55,540	56,650	57,450	58,250	59,050
16	55,890	56,690	57,490	58,600	59,400	60,200	61,000
17	57,840	58,640	59,440	60,550	61,350	62,150	62,950
18	59,840	60,640	61,440	62,550	63,350	64,150	64,950
19	62,700	63,500	64,300	65,410	66,210	67,010	67,810
20	66,940	67,740	68,540	69,650	70,450	71,250	72,050

Staff moving from 17 to 18 and 18 to 19 and 19 to 20 will get \$1,000 raise in September and move to the next step in January.

All credits for salary above the M.A. level must be on a graduate level. Evidence of courses completed must be made by submission of official school records. Certification credits do not apply. Courses above the M.A. must be in field. In accordance with Article X, Paragraph F2, the following positions shall receive an additional stipend: psychologist, social worker, guidance counselor, learning disabilities teacher consultant, student assistance advisor, and substance abuse counselor. Credit for teaching experience and placement on the salary guide: Full credit is given for teaching experience up through eleven years. If the candidate has thirteen years or more experience and has taken professional courses in the past five years, he will be given credit for thirteen years experience when employed. Teachers of Industrial Arts, who have experience in industry which is related to their teaching as-sign-ment, may be given partial credit for such experience.

Military Credit: 0 to 9 months - no credit; 9 months to 1 year, 9 months - 1 year credit; 1 year, 9 months to 2 years, 9 months - 2 years credit; 2 years, 9 months to 3 years, 9 months - 3 years credit; 3 years, 9 months to 4 years, 9 months - 4 years credit; 4 years, 9 months to 5 years - 5 years credit.

APPENDIX E 2001-02

STEP	BA	B15	B30	MA	M15	M30	PHD
START	Г 36,770	37,590	38,410	39,540	40,360	41,180	42,000
1	36,770	37,590	38,410	39,540	40,360	41,180	42,000
2	36,770	37,590	38,410	39,540	40,360	41,180	42,000
3	36,770	37,590	38,410	39,540	40,360	41,180	42,000
4	36,770	37,590	38,410	39,540	40,360	4,1,180	42,000
5	36,770	37,590	38,410	39,540	40,360	41,180	42,000
6	37,610	38,430	39,250	40,380	41,200	42,020	42,840
7	39,640	40,460	41,280	42,410	43,230	44,050	44,870
8	41,170	41,990	42,810	43,940	44,760	45,580	46,400
9	42,540	43,360	44,180	45,310	46,130	46,950	47,770
10	44,140	44,960	45,780	46,910	47,730	48,550	49,370
	46,140	46,960	47,780	48,910	49,730	50,550	51,370
12	48,090	48,910	49,730	50,860	51,680	52,500	53,320
13	50,040	50,860	51,680	52,810	53,630	54,450	55,270
14	52,340	53,160	53,980	55,110	55,930	56,750	57,570
15	54,740	55,560	56,380	57,510	58,330	59,150	59,970
16	57,250	58,070	58,890	60,020	60,840	61,660	62,480
17	59,880	60,700	61,520	62,650	63,470	64,290	65,110
18	62,630	63,450	64,270	65,400	66,220	67,040	67,860
19	65,500	66,320	67,140	68,270	69,090	69,910	70,730
20	68,500	69,320	70,140	71,270	72,090	72,910	73,730

Staff moving from 17 to 18 and 18 to 19 and 19 to 20 will get \$1,000 raise in September and move to the next step in January.

All credits for salary above the M.A. level must be on a graduate level Evidence of courses completed must be made by submission of attractor records. Certification credits do not apply. Courses above the M.A. must be in field. In accordance with Article X, Paragraph F2, the following positions shall receive an additional stipend: psychologist, social worker, guidance counselor, learning disabilities teacher consultant, student assistance advisor, and substance abuse counselor. Credit for teaching experience and placement on the salary guide: Full credit is given for teaching experience up through eleven years. If the candidate has thirteen years or more experience and has taken professional courses in the past five years, he will be given credit for thirteen years experience when employed. Teachers of Industrial Arts, who have experience in industry which is related to their teaching as-sign-ment, may be given partial credit for such experience.

Military Credit: 0 to 9 months - no credit; 9 months to 1 year, 9 months - 1 year credit; 1 year, 9 months to 2 years, 9 months - 2 years credit; 2 years, 9 months to 3 years, 9 months - 3 years credit; 3 years, 9 months to 4 years, 9 months - 4 years credit; 4 years, 9 months to 5 years - 5 years credit.

APPENDIX F 2002-03

STEP	BA	B15	B30	MA	M15	M30	PHD
START	37,190	38,030	38,870	40,020	40,860	41,700	42,540
1	37,190	38,030	38,870	40,020	40,860	41,700	42,540
2	37,190	38,030	38,870	40,020	40,860	41,700	42,540
3	37,190	38,030	38,870	40,020	40,860	41,700	42,540
4	37,190	38,030	38,870	40,020	40,860	41,700	42,540
5	37,190	38,030	38,870	40,020	40,860	41,700	42,540
6	38,190	39,030	39,870	41,020	41,860	42,700	43,540
7	39,640	40,480	41,320	42,470	43,310	44,150	44,'990
8	41,170	42,010	42,850	44,000	44,840	45,680	46,520
9	42,590	43,430	44,270	45,420	46,260	47,100	47,940
10	44,560	45,400	46,240	47,390	48,230	49,070	49,910
11	46,620	47,460	48,300	49,450	50,290	51,130	51,970
12	48,780	49,620	50,460	51,610	52,450	53,290	54,130
13	51,040	51,880	52,720	53,870	54,710	55,550	56,390
14	53,400	54,240	55,080	56,230	57,070	57,910	5,8,750
15	55,870	56,710	57,550	58,700	59,540	60,380	61,220
16	58,450	59,290	60,130	61,280	62,120	62.960	63,800
17	61,150	61,990	62,830	63,980	64,820	65,660	66,500
18	63,980	64,820	65,660	66,810	67,650	68,490	69,330
19	66,940	67,780	68,620	69,770	70,610	71,450	72,290
20	70,030	70,870	71,710	72,860	73,700	74,540	75,380

Staff moving from 17 to 18 and 18 to 19 and 19 to 20 will get \$1,000 raise in September and move to the next step in January.

All credits for salary above the M.A. level must be on a graduate level. Evidence of courses completed must be made by submission of official school records. Certification credits do not apply. Courses above the M.A. must be in field, In accordance with Article X, Paragraph F2, the following positions shall receive an additional stipend: psychologist, social worker, guidance counselor, learning disabilities teacher consultant, student assistance advisor, and substance abuse counselor. Credit for teaching experience and placement on the salary guide: Full credit is given for teaching experience up through eleven years. If the candidate has thirteen years or more experience and has taken professional courses in the past five years, he will be given credit for thirteen years experience when employed. Teachers of Industrial Arts, who have experience in industry which is related to their teaching as-sign-ment, may be given partial credit for such experience.

Military Credit: 0 to 9 months - no credit; 9 months to 1 year, 9 months - 1 year credit; 1 year, 9 months to 2 years, 9 months - 2 years credit; 2 years, 9 months to 3 years, 9 months - 3 years credit; 3 years, 9 months to 4 years, 9 months - 4 years credit; 4 years, 9 months to 5 years - 5 years credit.

CONTRACT

July 1, 2000-June 30, 2003

by and between

RED BANK BOROUGH BOARD OF EDUCATION

and the

RED BANK BOROUGH EDUCATION ASSOCIATION SECRETARIES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE I	RECOGNITION	71
ARTICLE II	NEGOTIATIONS	
	PROCEDURES	72
ARTICLE III	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	74
ARTICLE IV	RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES	, .77
ARTICLE V	SCHOOL CALENDAR	79
ARTICLE VI	WORK HOURS/WORK DAY	81
ARTICLE VII	EMPLOYMENT	82
ARTICLE VIII	SALARIES	83
ARTICLE IX	EVALUATION	84
ARTICLE X	SICK LEAVE	85
ARTICLE XI	TEMPORARY LEAVE	
•	OF ABSENCE	87
ARTICLE XII	EXTENDED LEAVE	
	OF ABSENCE	89
ARTICLE XIII	PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	Γ.
	AND EDUCATIONAL	
	IMPROVEMENT	91
ARTICLE XIV	INSURANCE PROTECTION	92
ARTICLE XV	DEDUCTION FROM SALARY	93
ARTICLE XVI	MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS	96
ARTICLE XVII	REDUCTIONS IN FORCE	98
ARTICLE XVIII	DURATION OF AGREEMENT	100
APPENDIX A	SALARY GUIDE	101
APPENDIX B	GRIEVANCE REPORT	102

PREAMBLE

This Agreement has been entered into on this 12th day of March, 2001, by and between the Board of Education of the Borough of Red Bank, New Jersey, hereinafter called the "Board," and the Red Bank Secretaries Association, hereinafter called the "Association."

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

The Board hereby recognizes the Association as the exclusive and sole representative for collective negotiations concerning the terms and conditions of employment for all contracted Secretarial/Clerical personnel employed by the Board, including:

All part-time and full-time secretaries and clerks;

But excluding: All confidential secretaries/assistants Parttime secretaries who are temporary or seasonal or used on an "as needed" basis.

ARTICLE II NEGOTIATION PROCEDURE:

- A. In accordance with Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974, the parties agree to enter into negotiations in a goodfaith effort to reach agreement concerning the terms and conditions of employment.
- B. Representatives of the Board and the Association shall commence negotiations in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Public Employees Relations Commission. During the interim period, between the date of submission of demands and the date of commencing of negotiations by the representatives,

Association representatives shall meet as requested for the purpose of clarification of financial details and contractual meaning, with Board representatives, Superintendent, or the business administrator as is necessary.

- C. Facts, opinions, proposals, and counter-proposals will be exchanged freely during the meeting or meetings in an effort to reach mutual understanding in agreement. The Board shall make available to the Association for inspection all pertinent records, data, and information of the Red Bank School District which are within public domain.
- D. The Board agrees not to negotiate with any organization other than that designated as the representative pursuant to Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974 for the duration of this Agreement.
- E. This Agreement incorporates the entire understanding of the parties on matters which were or could have been the subject of negotiation. During the term of this Agreement, neither party shall be required to negotiate

with respect to any such matter whether or not covered by this Agreement and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both of the parties at the time they negotiated or executed this Agreement.

F. Except as this Agreement shall hereinafter otherwise provide, all terms and conditions of employment applicable on the effective date of this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect except that proposed new rules or modifications of existing rules governing working conditions shall be negotiated with the majority representatives before they are established.

ARTICLE III GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. Definition

A "grievance" shall mean a complaint by a secretary/ clerk that there has been to him/her a personal loss, injury or inconvenience because of a violation, misinterpretation or inequitable application of Board Policy, this agreement or an administrative decision affecting secretaries/clerks.

A grievance to be considered under this procedure must be initiated by the employee within thirty (30) calendar days from the time when the secretary/clerk knew or should know of its occurrence.

B. Procedure

- 1. (a.) Failure by the Board or Administration at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision on a grievance within the specified time limits shall permit the aggrieved employee to proceed to the next step. Failure by the aggrieved party or the Association at any step of this procedure to appeal a grievance to the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision rendered at that step.
 - (b.) It is understood that secretaries/clerks shall, during and notwithstanding the pendency of any grievance, continue to observe all assignments and applicable rules and regulations of the Board until such grievance and any effect thereof shall have been fully determined.
- 2. The Association may process a grievance through all levels of the grievance procedure even though the aggrieved person does not wish to do so.

- 3. Any secretary/clerk who has a grievance shall discuss it first with his/her supervisor in an attempt to resolve the matter informally at that level.
- 4. If, as a result of the discussion, the matter is not resolved to the satisfaction of the employee within five (5) school days, he/she shall set forth his/her grievance, on the form provided, to the supervisor.

The supervisor shall communicate his/her decision to the employee in writing within five (5) school days of receipt of the written grievance.

- The secretary/clerk, no later than five (5) school days after receipt of the supervisor's decision, may appeal the supervisor's decision to the Superintendent of Schools. The appeal to the Superintendent must be made in writing reciting the matter submitted to the supervisor as specified above and his/her dissatisfaction with decisions previously rendered. The Superintendent shall attempt to resolve the matter as quickly as possible, but within a period not to exceed ten (10) school days. The Superintendent shall communicate his/her decision in writing to the secretary/clerk and the supervisor.
- 6. If the grievance is not resolved to the secretary/clerk's satisfaction, he/she, not later than five (5) school days after receipt of the Superintendent's decision, may request a review by the Board of Education. The request shall be submitted in writing through the Superintendent of Schools who shall attach all related papers and forward the request to the Board of Education. The Board, or a committee thereof, shall review the grievance and shall, at the option of the Board, hold a hearing with the employee and render a decision in writing within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of the grievance by the Board.

- 7. Rights of secretaries/clerks to representation:
 - (a.) Any aggrieved person may be represented at all stages of the grievance procedure by him/herself or, at his/her option, by a representative selected or approved by the Association.
 - (b.) When a secretary/clerk is not represented by the Association in the processing of a grievance, the Association shall at the time of submission of the grievance to the Superintendent, or any later level, be notified that the grievance is in process, have the right to be present and present its position in writing at all hearing sessions held concerning the grievance and shall receive a copy of all decisions rendered. A copy of the supervisor's written decision made in response to a written grievance shall be given to the Association immediately.
 - (c.) The Board and the Association shall assure the individual freedom from restraint, interference, coercion, discrimination or reprisal in presenting his appeal with respect to his personal grievances.
- 8. In the event a grievance is filed after the end of the school year and the beginning of the next school year, all reference to "school days" in the grievance procedure shall read "work days".
- 9. All documents, communications and records dealing with the processing of a grievance shall be filed in a separate grievance file and shall not be kept in the personnel file of any of the participants.
- 10. All meetings and hearings under this procedure shall not be conducted in public.

ARTICLE IV RIGHTS OF THE PARTIES

- A. Pursuant to Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974, members included in the negotiating unit have, and shall be protected in the exercise of, the right, freely and without fear of penalty or reprisal, to form, join, and assist any employee organization or refrain from any such activity. As a duly selected body exercising governmental powers under cover of law of the State of New Jersey, the Board undertakes and agrees that it shall not directly or indirectly discourage or deprive or coerce any member in the enjoyment of any rights conferred by Chapter 123, Public Laws of 1974, or other laws of New Jersey, or the Constitutions of New Jersey and the United Sates.
- B. The Board, subject only to the language of this Agreement, reserves to itself full jurisdiction and authority over matters of policy and retains the right, in accordance with applicable laws and regulations:
 - 1. to direct employees of the school discuss
 - 2. to hire, promote, transfer, assign, and retain employees in positions within the school district and to suspend, demote, discharge, or take other disciplinary action against employees;
 - 3. to release employees from duties because of lack of work, or for other legitimate reasons;
 - 4. to maintain the efficiency of the school district operations entrusted to them;
 - 5. to determine the methods, means, and personnel by which such operations are to be conducted; and
 - 6. to take whatever actions might be necessary to carry out the mission of the school district in situations of emergency.

Where policies have been or are adopted by the Board of Education in any or all of these areas, questions and issues arising thereunder shall be subject to the grievance procedure.

- C. No member shall be disciplined or reprimanded without just cause. Any such actions asserted by the Board or any agent or representative thereof, shall be subject to the grievance procedure herein set forth.
- D. Representatives of the Association and the New Jersey Education Association, shall be permitted to transact official business on school property at all reasonable times provided that this shall not interfere with or interrupt normal school operations and that the administration has been duly notified and approval has been secured.
- E. The Association and its representatives shall be permitted to use school buildings at all reasonable hours for meetings. The principal of the building in question shall be given a reasonable advance notice, normally at least twenty-four (24) hours, of the time and place of all such meetings and the principal's approval secured.
- F. Normally negotiations shall be scheduled after school hours. If negotiations are mutually scheduled during working hours, the Board will release, with pay, members of the negotiating team of the Association to conduct such negotiations.
- G. The Association may be permitted to use school building facilities and equipment, including typewriters, xerox machines, calculating machines and all types of audio-visual equipment at reasonable times when such

equipment is not otherwise in use. The Association shall pay for the reasonable cost of all materials and supplies

incident to such use.

ARTICLE V SCHOOL CALENDAR

- A. The Superintendent of Schools shall draw up a 12-month school calendar to recommend to the Board for its adoption at its discretion. The calendar may include a spring vacation, winter break and mid-winter break as is the present practice. When said breaks are scheduled, members shall not be required to work these vacation periods.
- B. All twelve-month members shall receive:
 - 2 weeks vacation after one (1) year of service.
 - 3 weeks vacation after eight (8) years of service.
 - 4 weeks vacation after 15 years of service.

All 12-month secretaries/clerks hired after January 24, 2000, shall receive a maximum of three (3) weeks vacation.

- C. Members, with prior supervisory approval, will have the option of taking vacation time during the school year.
- D. Members will not be required to report to work when school has been officially closed by the Superintendent as a result of an emergency closing due to inclement weather or on district-recognized holidays, except as otherwise provided. Should there be an emergency closing not caused by inclement weather which inhibits travel, members shall report to work at their assigned work stations or an alternate work site as provided by the Superintendent of Schools.
- E. When school days must be added in order to met the

180-day requirement, members shall be allowed to use vacation time and/or personal days if they have plans and, within five (5) school days after the formal announcement of the make-up days schedule, make a formal request to use such days.

- F. Members shall have the benefit of a 1:00 p.m., dismissal, when scheduled, before the Thanksgiving and Christmas holidays.
- G. Any paycheck which the employee would otherwise receive during a scheduled vacation shall be paid to the employee on the last day of work prior to the scheduled vacation dated on the day of receipt.
- H. If a holiday falls during an employee's scheduled vacation period, the holiday shall not be charged as a vacation day.
- I. When a member leaves employment with the school district, whether for retirement or any other reason, the member shall be paid for each day of vacation earnedbut not yet used. The rate of pay shall be calculated as the daily rate of pay on the current salary guide as of the date of termination.

ARTICLE VI WORK HOURS/WORK DAY

- A. Members shall work an eight (8) hour day inclusive of a one (1) hour lunch from September to June.
- B. Members shall either work a seven (7) hour day inclusive of a one-half (1/2) hour lunch or a seven and one-half (7 1/2) hour day inclusive of a one (1) hour lunch during the months of July and August. At the discretion of the individual administrator, summer hours will be either 7:00 a.m., to 2:00 p.m., or 8:00 a.m., to 3:00 p.m., with the understanding that the office will be covered by at least one member until 3:00 p.m.
- C. Members shall be entitled to reasonable breaks in the work day.

ARTICLE VII EMPLOYMENT

- A. Members may be granted 100% of secretarial/clerical experience to determine initial placement on the salary guide.
- B. Members shall be notified of their contract and salary status for the ensuing year no later than June 1 unless such contract and/or salary are not settled at the time.
- C. Previously accumulated unused sick leave days will be restored to all members returning from a Board-approved leave of absence, or who were placed on a preferred eligibility list, due to a reduction in force, upon their recall.
- D. Any member employed prior to February 1 of any school year whose term began prior to February 1 shall be given full credit for one (1) year of service towards the next step for the following year. Any member employed subsequent to February 1 of any school year shall remain on the same step of the salary guide for the following school year.

ARTICLE VIII SALARIES

- A. The salaries of all members covered by this Agreement are set forth in the schedule that is attached hereto and made a part hereof as Appendix A.
- B. 1. Members employed on a twelve-month basis shall be paid semi-monthly for the term of the contract.
 - 2. Salary checks are due on the 15th and 30th of the month. Members may individually elect to have part of their monthly salary deducted from their pay and forwarded to MONOC Federal Credit Union.
 - 3. When a pay falls on or during a school holiday, vacation or weekend, members shall receive their pay checks on the last previous working day.
- C. Members who are assigned extra-work/extra-pay responsibilities shall be paid at an hourly rate prorated to their salaries.

ARTICLE IX EVALUATION

- A. All employees shall be evaluated by their immediate supervisors at least once yearly and all non-tenured members shall be evaluated at least twice a year to be followed in each instance by a written evaluation report and by a conference between the employee and his/her immediate supervisor for the purpose of identifying any deficiencies and extending assistance for their correction.
- B. No material derogatory to an employee's conduct, service, character, or personality shall be placed in his/her personnel file unless the employee has had an opportunity to review such material by affixing his signature to the copy to be filed, with the express understanding that such signature in no way indicates agreement with the contents thereof. The employee shall also have the right to submit a written answer to such material, and his/her answer shall be reviewed by the Superintendent or his/her designee and attached to the copy.
- C. Although the Board agrees to protect the confidentiality of personal references, and other similar documents, it shall not establish any separate personnel file which is not available for the employee's inspection.

ARTICLE X SICK LEAVE

- A. All members employed shall be entitled to one day of sick leave per month each year based upon their contractual term of employment. Unused sick leave days shall be accumulated from year to year with no maximum limit.
- B. The Board may by rule or by individual consideration grant such leave over and above the minimum sick leave defined in Paragraph A above pursuant to provisions in Title 18A:30-7.
- C. 1. At the time of hiring a new member, the Board will grant two days of sick leave per year of service in another school district up to a maximum of twenty (20) days of sick leave. Such granted sick leave must be based upon the newly hired member's unused accumulated leave which had been earned elsewhere.
 - 2. Members hired mid-year shall, at the time of hire, be granted sick leave at a rate of one day per month for the balance of that school year. The total entitlement shall be granted to the member at that time. Thereafter twelve-month members shall be creaked with twelve (12) additional sick leave days at the beginning of the respective school year. Ten-month members shall be credited with ten (10) additional sick leave days.
- D. Members will be entitled to receive sick leave pay for absence due to childbirth only for those specific days for

- which their doctor certified them to be sick.
- E. All members who have completed twenty (20) years of service in the Red Bank School District will be paid in lieu of accumulated unused sick leave at a rate of \$27.50 per day to a maximum of \$2,000.00, upon retirement. In order to be eligible to receive this benefit, the member must notify the Board, in writing, at least three (3) months prior to the date of retirement that the member intends to retire. The letter of intent may be withdrawn no later than two (2) months prior to the date of retirement. The payment in lieu will be paid on the 15th of the month following the retirement date.

ARTICLE XI TEMPORARY LEAVE OF ABSENCE

- A. Members shall be entitled to the following temporary non-accumulative leaves of absence with full pay each school year:
 - 1. Five days of leave in the event of death in the immediate family. (Immediate family to mean husband, wife, son, daughter, mother, father, mother-in-law, father-in-law, grandmother, grandfather, brother, sister or stepparent or other relative living in the home or for whom member is support.)
 - Up to three days of leave in the event of serious illness in the immediate family.
 - 3. Up to four days of leave to cover the following contingencies:
 - a. Religious observance
 - b. Death of a relative or close friend
 - c. Subpoena to appear in court as a defendant
 - d. Attendance at professional meetings, conferences and conventions
 - e. For the purpose of receiving a degree
 - f. For the purpose of school visitation
 - g. To take special professional examination for advanced study
 - h. Legal, personal, medical and business affairs
 - 4. As provided in 3h above, personal affairs may not include leave for a vacation, except as permitted in Article V in reference to make-up days.
 - 5. In the event a member wishes to accompany the member's spouse on a business related trip, the member may apply to the Board for such unpaid leave as may be necessary up to a maximum of five

days, or may use vacation days for such purpose.

- C. Leave as provided under sub-paragraph 1, 2, 3 and 4 above is not cumulative and may not be transferred from one category to another, with the exception that leave available under sub-paragraphs 3 and 4 may be transferred to sub-paragraph 1. If such transfer of leave is necessary, it shall provide for a maximum of five non-accumulative days and only in the event of a second occurrence in the school year of a death in the immediate family.
- D. Request for leave under this Article shall be submitted to the supervisor who is empowered to grant it with due regard to the requirements of the respective department. Except for emergencies or extenuating circumstances, no leave shall be permitted the day prior to or the day following a school holiday or weekend.
- E. Except in cases of emergency, all requests for leave shall be submitted in writing prior to the date requested, stating the reason for the request. After discretionary approval by the supervisor, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, the request shall be filed in the office of the Superintendent of Schools.
- F. Members who have been requested by the Superintendent of Schools to represent the Red Bank Borough Public Schools at professional meetings, to visit other school systems, or to be absent from their regular duties for other professional reasons shall not be charged with absence or suffer loss of salary.
- G. Personal days may e taken either as a whole day, or with 48 hours notice, as a one-half (1/2) day.
- H. In the event a member has not utilized all leave days as authorized in paragraph A, subparagraph 4 of this Article, up to two (2) days shall be converted to sick leave and may be accumulated in the member's sick

leave bank.

ARTICLE XII EXTENDED LEAVE OF ABSENCE

A. Maternity Leave

- 1. Unpaid leaves of absence for maternity may be granted to members who are under tenure for a period up to two (2) years upon application by the member and on the advice and recommendation of a physician. When a position exists which a member is qualified to fill, the member may return to service within the two year period.
- 2. Application for the leave should be made not later than three (3) months after pregnancy has been determined.
- 3. Any member on maternity leave shall notify the board prior to March 1 whether it is the member's intention to return to duties in the next school year. Failure to provide such notice shall be a declaration of intent not to return.
- 4. Members granted a leave of absence for maternity purposes are excluded from the benefits of sick leave except as provided in Paragraph d of Artist V

B. Leave of absence for Adoption of Infant Child

- 1. Unpaid leaves of absence for the adoption of an infant child may be granted to members who are under tenure when application is made for a period up to two (2) years upon application by the member. When a position exists which a member is qualified to fill, the member may return to service within the two year period.
- 2. Application for the leave should be made not later

- than three (3) months before the anticipated custody of the child by the member.
- 3. Members granted a leave of absence for the adoption of an infant child are excluded from the benefits of sick leave.
- 4. Any member on adoption leave shall notify the Board prior to March 1 whether it is the member's intention to return to duties in the next school year. Failure to provide such notice shall be a declaration of intent not to return.
- 5. No benefits herein are meant to supersede or diminish benefits under the Family Leave Act.
- 6. Military leave shall be granted in accordance with applicable State or Federal law.

ARTICLE XIII PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENT

The Board agrees to reimbursement of the cost of college credits subject to the following provisions:

- A. College credits shall be reimbursed at the rate of \$500.00 per school year, each year commencing July 1 and ending June 30. Courses shall be approved by the immediate supervisor prior to registration.
- B. The member must submit an official transcript and make application for reimbursement on or before October 1 for the preceding spring and/or summer term and March 1 for the preceding fall term. To be reimbursed, members must be employees of the school system at the time application is made for reimbursement. Tuition payment shall be made within sixty (60) days after submission of college transcripts.
- C. The member must receive a grade "A" or "B" or its equivalent. Only if the university or college involved has specified in its catalog that the specific course in question is graded only as "pass" or "fail" will a grade of "pass" be acceptable for reimbursement.

ARTICLE XIV INSURANCE PROTECTION

- A The parties agree that all members of the bargaining unit shall enroll in the New Jersey State Health Benefit Plan for health benefits under the Plan's terms and conditions, excluding dental and prescription coverage. Dental and prescription coverage, as set forth in Article XXI (D) and (E) of the teachers' contract will remain unchanged.
- B. The Board of Education reserves the right to change carriers provided the coverage involved is equal to or better than the coverage as of the date of the change.
- C. The Board shall reimburse each member up to \$100 annually for vision care, including an annual eye examination by a qualified optometrist or ophthalmologist and the cost of any corrective glasses or lenses.

ARTICLE XV DEDUCTIONS FROM SALARY

1. 1	The Board agrees to deduct, from the salaries of it members, dues for the Association and the New Jersey Education Association as' said member
	individually and voluntarily authorize the Board to
	deduct. Such deductions shall be made in compliance with applicable New Jersey Statutes and under
	rules established by the State Department of
	Education. Said monies together with records of
	any corrections shall be transmitted to the Association by the 15th of each month followin
	the monthly pay period in which deductions wer made. The Association Treasurer shall disburs
	such monies to the appropriate Association or associations. Member authorizations shall be in writin
	in the form set forth below:
~ ~ .	********
	AUTHORIZATION TO
D	EDUCT ASSOCIATION MEMBERSHIP DUES

Name	
Social Security No.	
School building District	
To: Disbursing Officer	
Board of Education	

I hereby request and authorize the above-named disbursing officer to deduct from my earnings an amount sufficient to provide for the payment of those yearly membership dues as certified by the organizations indicated, in equal monthly payments for all or part of the current school year and for succeeding school years. I understand that the disbursing officer will discontinue such deductions only if I file such notice of withdrawal as of the January 1 or July 1 next succeeding the date on which notice of withdrawal is filed. I also agree that upon termination of employment, the disbursing officer shall deduct any remaining amount due for that current school year. I hereby waive all right and claim for said monies so deducted and transmitted in accordance with this authorization, and relieve the governing board and all of its officers from any liability therefore.

I designate the Association to receive dues and distribute them according to the organization(s) indicated:

Association	·
New Jersey	Education Association

- 2. Each of the associations named above shall certify to the Board, in writing, the current rate of its membership dues. Any association which shall change the rate of its membership dues shall give the Board written notice prior to the effective date of such change.
- 3. Additional authorizations for dues deduction may be received after August 1 under rules established by the State Department of Education.
- 4. Any such written authorization may be withdrawn by any member at any time by filing the notice of such withdrawal with the disbursing officer. The filing of notice of withdrawal shall be effective to halt deductions as of the January 1 or July 1 next succeeding the

date on which notice of withdrawal is filed.

B. Members shall be authorized to select tax shelters of their choice only if one company agrees to function as receiving and disbursing agent in relationship to all participating companies.

ARTICLE XVI MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- A. If any provision of this Agreement or any application of this Agreement to any member or groups of members is held to be contrary to law, then such provisions or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications shall continue in full force and effect.
- B. Any individual contract between the Board and an individual member, heretofore or hereafter executed, shall be subject to and consistent with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. If an individual contract contains any language inconsistent with this Agreement, the Agreement, during its duration, shall be controlling.
- C. The Board and the Association agree that there shall be no discrimination, and that all practices, procedures, and policies of the school system shall clearly exemplify that there is no discrimination in the hiring, training, assignment or promotion, or in the application or administration of this Agreement on the basis of race, creed, color, religion, national origin, sex, domicile, marital status, or sexual orientation.
- D. Whenever any notice is required to be given by either of the parties to this Agreement to the other, pursuant to the provision(s) of this agreement, either party shall do so by telegram or registered letter at the following addresses:
 - 1. If by Association to Board, at 76 Branch Avenue, Red Bank, New Jersey 07701
 - 2. If by Board to Association, to the President of the Association

- E. Nothing in this Agreement which changes pre-existing Board policy, rules, or regulations shall operate retroactively unless expressly so stated.
- F. The parties agree that members shall continue to serve under the direction of the Superintendent of Schools and in accordance with Board and Administrative Policies, Rules and Regulations provided that the provisions of this Agreement shall supersede and prevail over any conflicting provisions.
- G. It is understood that, under the rulings of the courts of New Jersey and the State Commissioner of Education, the Board is forbidden to waive any rights or powers granted it by law.
- H. Anything to the contrary notwithstanding, nothing contained in any section, paragraph or sub-section of this Agreement shall be interpreted in any manner or be so construed as to indicate that the Board has waived rights which are expressly required by the courts to be retained by the Board.
- I. The Board shall provide a copy of the contract to the Association.

ARTICLE XVII REDUCTIONS IN FORCE

In the event that there are reductions in force among the Secretarial Unit, such reductions in force shall be accomplished using seniority and performance criteria as described below:

- 1. Each Secretarial Unit employee shall be evaluated by April 30 of each calendar year.
- 2. Within the written evaluation shall be a four point scale as follows:
 - 1 = Outstanding/superior
 - 2 = Satisfactory
 - 3 = Needs improvement
 - 4 = Unsatisfactory
- 3. The following areas shall be evaluated with the four point scale;
 - 1. Performance in terms of quality of work produced within job description/assignment.
 - 2. Performance in terms of timeliness regarding job assignments.
 - 3. Overall secretarial/clerical skills.
 - 4. Interaction with public/staff members.
 - 5. Attendance
- 4. The points earned in each of the five areas shall be added

together and applied to the performance side of the matrix listed below. After the first year of the system, the most recent two years shall be used and averaged together to determine the performance

- 5. Years of service shall be calculated as of April 30 (the final date for evaluation) and shall be divided into the following subsets:
 - a. Less than one year (non-tenured)
 - b. Greater than one year, but less than three years (non-tenured)
 - c. Greater than three years, but less than seven years (tenured)
 - d. Greater than seven years, but less than eleven years (tenured)
 - e. Equal to or greater than eleven years (tenured).
- 6. In order to create a list for reductions in force, the district shall compile a matrix creating categories based upon years of service and evaluation rating as follows:

POINTS	0-1 YEARS	1-3 YEARS	3-7 YEARS	7-11 YEARS 11 YEARS +
5-9	7	8	16	18 20
7 7				17 19
10-11	5	6		
12-14	3	4	12	13 14
15-20	2	1	9	10 11

- 7. If a reduction in force becomes necessary, the category with the lowest number within the matrix will experience the first layoff, in inverse order of seniority within the category. Further layoffs shall occur within the category until all within the category are laid off. The next layoff will then occur within the next lowest category and so on. Layoffs shall continue in this manner until all necessary reductions have been made.
- 8. Individuals in categories 9-20, by virtue of having tenure, have an automatic right to recall when a vacancy exists.

ARTICLE XVIII DURATION OF AGREEMENT

This agreement shall be effective as of July 1, 2000, and shall continue in effect until June 30, 2003. This Agreement shall not be extended orally and it is expressly understood that it shall expire on the date indicated.

In witness whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed by their respective Presidents and/or members of the duly authorized negotiations committees, and attested to by their respective secretaries, all as of March 12, 2001, and ratified by the respective parties.

FOR THE RED BANK SECRETARIES ASSOCIATION

Teresa Ullmann, RBBEA Negotiations Chair

JoAnn Hamm, Secretarial Representative

FOR THE RED BANK BOROUGH BOARD OF EDUCATION

ohn McMahon, Vegotiations Chair

emario Repka, Board Presiden

APPENDIX A 2000-2003 Secretarial/ Clerical Salary Guides

2000-2001 Salaries:

Step	Clerk Typist (Group 1)	Secretary (Group 2)
1	\$20,140	\$23,840
2	\$20,950	\$24,870
3	\$21,770	\$25,910
4	\$22,590	\$26,960
5	\$23,420	\$28,020
6	\$24,260	\$29,090
7	\$25,110	\$30,170
8	\$25,960	\$31,250
9	\$26,960	\$32,330
10	\$27,960	\$33,410
11	\$28,550	\$34,500
12	\$29,422	\$35,590
13	\$30,422	\$36,590
14	\$31,422	\$37,590

2001-2002 Salaries:

i	Step	Clerk Typist (Group 1)	Secretary (Group 2)
	1	\$21,140	\$24,840
	2	\$21,950	\$25,870
	3	\$22,770	\$26,910
	4	\$23,590	\$27,960
	5	\$24,420	\$29,020
	6	\$25,260	\$30,090
	7	\$26,110	\$31,170
	8	\$26,960	\$32,250
	9	\$27,960	\$33,330
	10	\$28,960	\$34,410
	11	\$29,550	\$35,500
	12	\$30,422	\$36,590
	13	\$31,422	\$37,590
	14	\$32,422	\$38,590

2002-2003 Salaries:

		79.9
Step	Clerk Typist (Group 1)	Secretary (Group 2)
1	\$22,140	\$25,840
2	\$22,950	\$26,870
3	\$23,770	\$27,910
4	\$24,590	\$28,960
5	\$25,420	\$30,020
6	\$26,260	\$31,090
7	\$27,110	\$32,170
8	\$27,960	\$33,250
9	\$28,960	\$34,330
10	\$29,960	\$35,410
11	\$30,550	\$36,500
12	\$31,422	\$37,590
13	\$32,422	\$38,590
14	\$33,422	\$39,590

Ten month employees – 5/6 of above salaries \$300 longevity – 15 years of service \$200 longevity – additional at 20 years of service

APPENDIX B FORM A

FROM:	, Grievant
TO:	,Grievance Officer
DATE:	
DESCRIPTION OF GRIEVANCE: (Include the date the alleged grievance)	e took place).

(This portion to be	used by Grievance Officer ONLY)
	Step #2
TO:	Grievan
FROM:	, Grievance Office
DATE:	
RESPONSE TO GR	IEVANCE:
	FORM B Step #3
FROM:	
	Step #3
TO:	Step #3
TO:	Step #3 . Grievan , Superintenden Form A is hereby attached for APPEAI

Step #4	i i
TO:	, Grievant
FROM:	, Superintendent
DATE:	
RESPONSE TO GRIEVANT'S APPEAL:	6.5
Signature of Superintendent:	
Date Appeal Received:	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
FORM C	
FROM:	, Grievant
ГО:	
DATE:	
The attached Grievance Forms A and B are ed for your information pertaining to my co	hereby submit- emplaint).
Signature of Grievant:	

Step #6

TO:	, Grievant
FROM:	
DATE:	•
RESPONSE TO SECOND APPEAL:	
	·